
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
HOUSING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Regular Mee ng Date/Time:  June 12, 2024 at 8:00 a.m. 

Regular Mee ng Loca on:   HACA Board Room, 22941 Atherton Street Hayward, CA  94541-6633 

Teleconference Loca ons:    2801 41st Avenue, Minneapolis, Minnesota  55406; and  
    Pacific Palace, Supreme Court Road, Central Hong Kong SAR 

Remote Par cipa on Link:   h ps://us02web.zoom.us/j/88460095724 

MEETING AGENDA 

Item No. 1:    Call to Order and Roll Call       

Item No. 2:  Approve the Minutes of the April 10, 2024 Regular Mee ng  Page 3  

Item No. 3:  Public Comment – On ma ers not on the agenda 

Item No. 4:  Execu ve Director’s Report (Informa on Only)    Page 13 
   
Item No. 5:  New Business 
 

Item No.5-1:  Accept the Audit for the July 1, 2022-June 30, 2023 Fiscal Year  Page 16 

Item No.5-2:  Adopt Resolu on 04-24 Approving the Opera ng Budget and Budgeted Posi ons for 
the July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025 Fiscal Year    Page 21 

Item No.5-3: Adopt Resolu on No. 05-24 Approving the Contribu on to the Alameda County 
Employees’ Re rement Associa on (ACERA) for the July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025 
Fiscal Year        Page 32 

Item No.5-4:  Approve Le er Regarding California SB 1357    Page 35 

Item No. 5-5: Approve the 2024 HACA Scholarship and 2024 Don Biddle Memorial Scholarship 
Awards         Page 39 

Item No.5-6:  Appoint a Nomina ng Commi ee for the Housing Commission Chair and Vice Chair 
Posi ons        Page 41 

Item No.5-7:   Quarterly Budget Report for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2024 
(Informa on Only)        Page 43 

Item No.5-8:   Program Ac vity Report (Informa on Only)    Page 46 

Item No. 6: Communica ons  

Item No. 7: Commissioner Reports  

Item No. 8: Adjournment 
 
In-person a endees who wish to speak on a ma er should request a speaker slip from the Housing Commission Clerk, 
fill it out and return it to the clerk before the start of the mee ng. Remote a endees should submit their wri en 
comment(s) to:  melissat@haca.net.  If emailing a wri en comment on a specific agenda item, please include your 
full name and the agenda item number. 
 
In-person and remote a endees who wish to comment on a ma er NOT on the Housing Commission’s agenda must 
wait un l the Chairperson calls for PUBLIC COMMENT.  Comments on specific agenda items will not take place un l 
the Chairperson calls for public comments on that agenda item. There is a me limit of 3 minutes for each public 
speaker. The Chairperson has the discre on to further limit this me if warranted by the number of public speakers.  
The Brown Act restricts the Housing Commission from discussing and/or ac ng on any ma ers that are not on the 
mee ng agenda.  Therefore, ma ers not on the agenda that are raised during public comment will be referred to 
staff.   



 

2 
 

 
HOUSING COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 
April 10, 2024 



 

3 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
HOUSING COMMISSION SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 

 
Regular Mee ng Date and Time: April 10, 2024  at 8:00 a.m. 
 
Regular Mee ng Loca on: HACA Board Room 

22941 Atherton Street, Hayward, CA 94541-6633 
 
Item No. 1:  Call to order and Roll Call 

Vice Chairperson McCorriston called the mee ng to order at 8:01 a.m.  Vice Chairperson 
McCorriston announced that Commissioner Courtney Welch will be par cipa ng in the mee ng 
via Zoom under the just cause provisions of AB2449.   
 
Commissioners present in the HACA Board Room: 
Commissioner Pete Ballew 
Commissioner Seema Chawla 
Commissioner Mark Gerry 
Commissioner Daniel Goldstein 
Commissioner Michael Hannon 
Commissioner Helen Mayfield 
Commissioner Michael McCorriston (Vice Chair) 
Commissioner Sakakihara 
 
Commissioners who entered a er Roll Call: 
Commissioner Courtney Welch (on Zoom) 
Commissioner Helen Mayfield (present in the HACA Board Room) 
 
Commissioners who were excused: 
Commissioner Yang Shao (Chair) 
 
Item No. 2:   Approval of the Minutes of the February 14, 2024 and March 13, 2024 Regular 

Mee ngs 

Melissa Taesali, Execu ve Assistant, stated for the record that there was a typo in the numbering 
format for the minutes from the February 14, 2024 mee ng. 
 
Recommenda on:   Approve the minutes of the February 14, 2024 mee ng minutes with 

correc on and the minutes of the March 13, 2024 mee ng as presented. 
 
Mo on and Second:   Commissioner McQuaid (mo on) and Commissioner Hannon (second). 
 
Upon a roll call of the votes being taken, the votes were: 
Ayes:   Commissioners Ballew, Chawla, Gerry, Goldstein, Hannon, McCorriston, McQuaid, and 
Sakakihara. 
 
Abstain:  Vice Chairperson McCorriston 



 

4 
 

 
Not present for the vote:  Commissioners Mayfield and Welch. 
 
Mo on passed.  Approved as recommended. 
 
Before moving on to the next item of business on the agenda, it was noted that Commissioner 
Courtney Welch joined the mee ng via Zoom.   
 
Item No. 3:  Public Comment  -  On ma ers not on the agenda 

No public comments were made at this me. 
 
Item No. 4:   Execu ve Director’s Report (Informa on Only) 

Laura Broussard Rosen, Execu ve Director, presented the staff report.  Ms. Broussard Rosen 
provided the Housing Commission with an update on the wait list opening that was held on April 
2, 2024 through  April 5, 2024.   She reported that HACA encountered a technical issue during the 
last 3 hours of that opening.  Ms. Broussard Rosen stated that HACA is planning to extend this 
wait list opening for a one-day period in early May.  She  also reported on some of the preliminary 
data from the April wait list opening. 
 
Ms. Broussard Rosen also announced that the audit of the  fiscal year that ended on June 30, 
2023 has been completed and that it was a clean audit.  She indicated that the audit will be 
presented at the Housing Commission’s June mee ng.   
 
Commissioner Discussion:  Commissioner McQuaid and Ms. Broussard Rosen talked about the 
wait list applica on centers.  Ms. Broussard Rosen reported that HACA staff assisted about 200 
people who came into the HACA  office for assistance with the online applica on.  She explained 
that the sta s cal data from the applica on centers was not available just yet and that she would 
report back to the Housing Commission once all the data is available. 
 
Commissioner Hannon thanked the HACA staff for providing the public with the opportunity to 
apply for the Sec on 8 Housing Choice Voucher wait list. He asked if the technical issue resulted 
in addi onal costs for HACA.  Ms. Broussard Rosen explained that Tenmast-MRI, HACA’s housing 
and financial so ware vendor, provided the technical support for this opening and that there 
were no addi onal so ware costs.  Commissioner Hannon also praised the HACA staff for their 
outreach efforts and commented that informa on about the wait list opening was widely 
circulated within the jurisdic on. 
 
Commissioner Welch asked about the number of duplicate applica ons.  Ms. Broussard Rosen 
explained that the HACA staff will have more informa on on this and will report back to the 
Commission. She further explained that staff plans to gather all the informa on, including the 
data from the upcoming one-day extension of the waitlist opening, and report back to the 
Housing Commission at a later date.  



 

5 
 

 
Commissioner Mayfield, Ms. Broussard Rosen, and Jennifer Cado, Senior Administra ve Analyst, 
discussed wait list preferences and who can apply for the wait list.   Ms. Cado described the the 
three categories of preferences.   Ms. Cado indicated that living within HACA’s jurisdic on is not 
a requirement to apply for the waitlist and that anyone can apply.  She explained that once HACA 
issues a voucher to an applicant, that person must then be willing to live within HACA’s 
jurisdic on, with that voucher. 
 
Item No. 5:   New Business  

 
Item No.5-1:   Amendments to the Housing Choice Voucher Administra ve Plan  

Laura Broussard Rosen introduced this item.  Jennifer Cado presented the staff report.  Ms. Cado 
reported that in prepara on for the implementa on of the Housing Opportunity Through 
Moderniza on Act of 2016 (HOTMA), staff must revise HACA’s Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) 
Administra ve Plan (Admin Plan). Ms. Cado summarized the proposed revisions related to 
processing interims, how certain deduc ons will be determined, and asset limits. She also 
explained the ming for the implementa on of these revisions and indicated that some of the 
revisions are also going to be reflected in the  Annual Plan which staff will be presen ng later in 
the mee ng. 
 
Recommenda on:   Approve the proposed amendments to HACA’s Housing Choice Voucher 

Administra ve Plan as presented. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Commissioner Chawla asked if it would be appropriate to share 
informa on on these HOTMA changes with interested par es.  Ms. Cado indicated that it would 
be fine to share the informa on.  Ms. Cado offered to assist in answering any ques ons about 
the HOTMA changes and advised Commissioner Chawla to refer any inquiries to her.  
 
Commissioner Pete Ballew thanked Ms. Cado for the report.   Commissioner Ballew and Ms. 
Broussard Rosen discussed the ending of contract rent payments to landlords in the event of a 
tenant’s death and the language in the Admin Plan regarding paying landlords for the full month. 
He asked if it was possible to revise this because the ming of a death at the end of a month 
could be a hardship to the family.  Ms. Broussard Rosen commented that while staff understands 
the sensi vity of this type of situa on, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) regula ons authorize housing authori es to only pay through the end of the month in this 
circumstance.  
 
Vice Chairperson Michael McCorriston asked for clarifica on about the ming of payments to 
landlords.  Ms. Broussard Rosen explained that as soon as HACA is no fied about a tenant’s 
death, they can begin the process of ending the contract rent payments.  She indicated that there 
have been some instances in these types of situa ons when HACA has had to recoup assistance 
from the landlord since the landlord is not en tled to any subsidies beyond the month of the 
death. 
 



 

6 
 

Commissioner Hannon commented that it is important to avoid terms that are vague or 
ambiguous and he gave an example from the dra  of revisions.  He encouraged staff to eliminate 
these types of terms. 
 
Public Comment:    Kay Pinnock, a member of the public commented on her experience in dealing 
with landlords par cipa ng in housing programs.  She commented that the programs are 
supposed to be designed for tenants but the landlords are the only ones who are benefi ng from 
these programs. 
 
Mo on and Second:   Commissioner Ballew (mo on) and Commissioner Goldstein (second). 
 
Upon a roll call of the votes being taken, the votes were: 
Ayes:  Commissioners Ballew, Chawla, Gerry, Goldstein, Hannon, Mayfield, McCorriston, 
McQuaid, Sakakihara, and Welch. 
 
Mo on passed.  Approved as recommended. 
 
Item No.5-2:   Adopt Resolu on No. 03-24 Approving HACA’s Annual Public Housing Agency Plan for 

the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2024 

Jennifer Cado presented the staff report.    Ms. Cado reported that HUD requires that housing 
authori es submit a Public Housing Agency Plan (PHA Plan) to HUD on an annual basis.  She 
explained that HACA’s PHA Plan describes the agency’s goals and ini a ves to support affordable 
housing, fair housing, expand the supply of assisted housing, increase opera onal efficiency, and 
preserve exis ng affordable housing stock.   Ms. Cado summarized the key elements of the PHA 
Plan and stated that HACA met with the Resident Advisory Board (RAB) on January 20 and January 
24 to receive their comments on the PHA Plan.  Ms. Cado also stated that a public hearing to 
receive comments on the PHA Plan was held on March 13, 2024.  She reported that  no public 
comments were received from the RAB or from the public during the public hearing.  Ms. Cado 
recommended that the Housing Commission adopt Resolu on No. 03-24  approving HACA’s 
annual PHA Plan.   She reported that the PHA Plan submission to HUD is due on April 17, 2024. 
 
Recommenda on:   Adopt Resolu on No. 03-24 approving HACA’s Annual Public Housing 

Agency Plan for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and authorize 
submission to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

 
Commission Discussion: Commissioner Mayfield asked for clarifica on on the numbering order 
of the agenda items.  Commissioner McQuaid explained that numbering format changed slightly 
from the format used for the March agenda packet since there were less agenda items for the 
April mee ng.   
 
Commissioner Hannon and Ms. Cado discussed the RAB.  He asked that staff consider providing 
a modest s pend to the  members of the RAB for their me and par cipa on in this process. Ms. 
Broussard Rosen stated that staff will look into this and report back at a future mee ng.  



 

7 
 

Commissioner Ballew thanked Ms. Cado and staff for all the work put into developing the PHA 
Plan.  Commissioner Ballew, Ms. Cado, and Ms. Broussard Rosen discussed the meline for the 
implementa on of HUD’s new housing informa on portal. 
 
Public Comment:  Kay Pinnock, a member of the public, asked what the acronym “RAB” means. 
 
Mo on and Second:   Commissioner Chawla (mo on) and Commissioner Welch (second). 
 
Upon a roll call of the votes being taken, the votes were: 
Ayes:  Commissioners Ballew, Chawla, Gerry, Goldstein, Hannon, Mayfield, McCorriston, 
McQuaid, Sakakihara, and Welch. 
 
Mo on passed.  Approved as recommended. 
 
Item No.5-3: Approve Amendment to Contract with I Sterling, Inc. for Housing Quality Standards 

Inspec on Services 

Laura Broussard Rosen presented the staff report. Ms. Broussard Rosen reported that a majority 
of  HACA’s annual and biennial unit inspec ons are handled by a contractor, I Sterling, Inc. 
(Sterling).  She indicated that the contract expired on April 9, 2024.  Ms. Broussard Rosen also 
reported that in an cipa on of the contract expira on, staff presented an item at the March 13th 
Housing Commission mee ng to request contract amendment for a me-only extension.  Ms.  
Broussard Rosen explained that the extension is required to allow me for HACA to complete a 
solicita on for a new vendor that is currently underway and to allow for a transi on meline.   
She  reported that due to a lack of lack of quorum at the March mee ng, the  Housing Commission 
could not take ac on.  Ms. Broussard Rosen indicated that since the request did not require 
addi onal budget or contract authority, staff went ahead and executed the amendment and is  
reques ng retroac ve approval of the contract amendment. 
 
Recommenda on:  Retroac vely approve an amendment to the contract with I Sterling, Inc. 

for Housing Quality Standards inspec on services. 
 
Commission Discussion: Commissioner Chawla asked for clarifica on on the total amount of the 
contract.  Ms. Broussard Rosen explained that to date, $540,000 of the $658,000  contract 
authority has been spent.  She indicated that there is enough  le  in the  contract to cover the 
transi on period.   
 
The Housing Commission  recessed at 8:44 a.m. due to a medical emergency in the mee ng room.  
The Housing Commission reconvened at  8:53 a.m. and returned to Item No. 5-3. 
 
Commission Discussion (con nued): Commissioner Hannon asked if the Execu ve Director has 
authority to exercise some discre on in these types of situa ons to prevent lapse in services if 
the Housing Commission is not able to meet.  Ms. Broussard Rosen indicated that HACA’s 
Procurement Policy dictates the dollar amount thresholds that require Housing Commission 
approval.  Mansoorali Hudda, Finance Director, commented that from a prac cal perspec ve, 
the Execu ve Director may take the ac on needed to ensure con nuity of services and follow up 
with the Housing Commission  for ra fica on and approval. 



 

8 
 

 
Mo on and Second:   Commissioner McQuaid (mo on) and Commissioner Goldstein (second). 
 
Upon a roll call of the votes being taken, the votes were: 
Ayes:  Commissioners Ballew, Chawla, Gerry, Goldstein, Hannon, Mayfield, McCorriston, 
McQuaid, Sakakihara, and Welch. 
 
Mo on passed.  Approved as recommended. 
 
Item No.5-4: Award Contract to Abacus Services Corpora on for Temporary Employment Services 

Mansoorali Hudda presented the staff report.  Mr. Hudda reported that HACA u lizes temporary 
employment services to support agency opera ons as a result of vacancies or other staffing 
shortages.  He reported that HACA issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) in December and 
received 10 responses.  Mr. Hudda further reported that the RFP evalua on commi ee,  
comprised of Ms. Broussard Rosen, HACA’s Human Resources Manager, and himself, conducted 
a thorough review and selected Abacus Services Corpora on (Abacus).  He outlined some of the 
reasons why the commi ee selected Abacus and described the structure and terms of the 
contract.  Mr. Hudda recommended the award of contract,  in the amount of $1,000,000 over a 
five-year contract term, including op ons, to Abacus Services Corpora on. 
 
Recommenda on: Award contract to Abacus Services Corpora on for temporary 

employment services in the amount of $1,000,000. 
 
Commission Discussion:  Commissioner McQuaid and Mr. Hudda discussed the scoring of the 
RFPs.    She commented that the Abacus’s score seemed low.  Mr. Hudda explained that the 
scoring is a result of the conserva ve approach the commi ee took in scoring the responses to 
the RFP.  Commissioner McQuaid asked why the contract with HACA’s exis ng contractor was 
not awarded the contract.  Mr. Hudda indicated that the other contractor came in second since 
Abacus offered the be er pricing.  He indicated that staff will be presen ng another item to 
extend the contract with HACA’s exis ng contractor to cover a transi on to the new vendor.  
Commissioner McQuaid asked if staff should include a clause to ensure that HACA only does 
business with companies that provide equal pay to women. Mr. Hudda commented that HACA 
does not mandate this and their contract billing rates are set based solely on job classifica on 
and these contractors establish their own employment policies but that it is something to 
consider for the future. 
 
Commissioner Chawla and Mr. Hudda discussed some of the posi ons at HACA that have been 
covered using temporary employment services.  Commissioner Chawla and Mr. Hudda discussed 
how the agencies are paid.   
 
Commissioner Hannon asked that staff include the job classifica ons and rate schedules in future 
agenda items related to contracts for temporary employment services.  
 
Commissioner Mayfield recommended that staff ask for the informa on on the hiring policies 
and prac ces in future RFPs.  Commissioner Mayfield asked for clarifica on on why there are 
currently 2 contractors for temporary employment services.  Mr. Hudda explained that the 



 

9 
 

previous contractor will be transi oning out and HACA will only have one contractor.  Vice 
Chairperson McCorriston agreed with Commissioner Mayfield in requiring that contractors 
include their hiring prac ces and policies in future RFPs. 
 
Commissioner McQuaid asked if the temporary employees under HACA’s exis ng vendor will 
con nue at HACA under the new vendor, Abacus Corpora on. Mr. Hudda commented that he 
will cover that informa on in the next agenda item. 
 
Mo on and Second:  McQuaid (mo on) and Goldstein (second). 
 
Upon a roll call of the votes being taken, the votes were: 
Ayes:  Commissioners Ballew, Chawla, Gerry, Goldstein, Hannon, Mayfield, McCorriston, 
McQuaid, Sakakihara, and Welch. 
 
Mo on passed.  Approved as recommended. 
 
Item No.5-5:   Approve Extension of Purchase Order with AppleOne for Temporary Employment 

Services 

Mansoorali Hudda presented the staff report.  Mr. Hudda reported that there are currently three 
temporary employees, hired through HACA’s exis ng contractor, AppleOne, who are working at 
HACA.  He indicated that these temporary employees will transi on over to Abacus Services 
Corpora on but that this transi on period will take some me.  Mr. Hudda further reported that 
at the March Housing Commission mee ng, staff made a recommenda on to extend the 
purchase order with AppleOne to allow for this transi on.  He explained that due to the lack of 
quorum, the Housing Commission could not take ac on at that me.  Mr. Hudda reported that 
the Execu ve Director, to ensure con nuity of services, executed the purchase order extension.  
He recommended that the Housing Commission retroac vely approve the extension to the 
AppleOne purchase order in the amount of $75,000, through May 2024 to allow for the transi on 
of temporary employment services from AppleOne to Abacus Services Corpora on. 
 
Recommenda on:  Ra fy the approval of the extension of the purchase order with AppleOne 

for temporary employment services. 
 
Commission Discussion: Commissioner Mayfield asked how the temporary employees are able 
to work within a union shop and if the represented employees feel displaced.  Mr. Hudda 
indicated that there is language in HACA’s labor contract that permits HACA to have temporary 
employees.  Commissioner McQuaid commented that these vacancies create a great opportunity 
for temporary employees to become permanent HACA employee and Mr. Hudda agreed.  He 
indicated that many temporary employees have applied during open recruitments and have been 
successful in securing a permanent posi on at HACA.   
 
Mo on and Second:  Commissioner Hannon (mo on) and Commissioner Goldstein (second). 
 
Upon a roll call of the votes being taken, the votes were: 
Ayes:  Commissioners Ballew, Chawla, Gerry, Goldstein, Hannon, Mayfield, McCorriston, 
McQuaid, Sakakihara, and Welch. 



 

10 
 

 
Mo on passed.  Approved as recommended. 
 
Item No.5-6: Appoint a Scholarship Commi ee for the 2024 HACA Scholarship Program 

Daniel Taylor, Special Programs Manager,  presented the staff report.  Mr. Taylor reported that 
HACA offers scholarship opportuni es every year to par cipants in the Family Self-Sufficiency 
(FSS) Program and to tenants in the Preserving Alameda County Housing, Inc. (PACH) units 
managed by HACA.   He explained that a scholarship commi ee, comprised of members of the 
Housing Commission, review the scholarship applica ons and select applicants to receive 
scholarship awards.  He recommended that the Housing Commission appoint members to the 
2024 HACA Scholarship Commi ee.  A er a brief discussion, Commissioners Chawla, Gerry, and 
Goldstein volunteered to serve on the commi ee. 

Recommenda on: Appoint Commissioners Chawla, Gerry, and Goldstein to the 2024 HACA 
Scholarship Commi ee 

Commission Discussion:  Commissioner Hannon commented on the Donald Biddle Memorial 
Scholarship. He commented that he knew Don very well and that he hoped the applica on packet 
shared some informa on about him.  Mr. Taylor stated that it does.    

Commissioner Sakakihara commented that he served on the 2023 Scholarship Commi ee and 
that it was helpful to have someone on the commi ee act as the “de facto Chair” to get everyone 
organized. 

Mo on and Second:  Commissioner Hannon (mo on) and Commissioner Ballew (second). 
 
Upon a roll call of the votes being taken, the votes were: 
Ayes:  Commissioners Ballew, Chawla, Gerry, Goldstein, Hannon, Mayfield, McCorriston, 
McQuaid, Sakakihara, and Welch. 
 
Mo on passed.  Approved as recommended. 
 

Item No.5-7:  Program Ac vity Report (Informa on only) 

Report received. 

Commission Discussion:  Commissioner Sakakihara asked about the sta s cs in the HCV Program 
U liza on report on page 39 and the HCV Housing Quality Standards (HQS) Inspec ons and 
Abatement report on page 40 of the mee ng agenda packet.  He commented that the numbers 
reported are not adding up correctly and asked if this is an issue with the data or a result of typos.  
Ms. Broussard Rosen indicated there may be an issue with the formula or a rounding issue that 
staff will report back in the next mee ng report.   

Commissioner Ballew asked about the HQS inspec ons report and no ced  a significant decrease 
in the numbers for the first quarter of 2024.  He asked if this change is the result of a change in  

vendors or some other reason.  Ms. Broussard Rosen indicated that that there has been a  



 

11 
 

transi on period resul ng from the re rement of one of the inspec ons staff and that this 
number tends to fluctuate over the course of a year.  

Commissioner Hannon and Ms. Broussard Rosen talked about  the general lease terms on  the 
project-based units. 

Item No.6:  Communica ons (Informa on Only) 

Ms. Broussard Rosen introduced Ellen Rayz, HACA’s new Informa on Technology (IT) Manager. 
She shared that Ms. Rayz was the Chief Technology Officer at the City College of San Francisco 
and has extensive IT management experience.  Ms. Broussard Rosen stated that HACA is thrilled 
to have Ms. Rayz on board.  Ms. Rayz thanked the staff and the Housing Commission for the 
welcome and praised re red IT Manager, Irving Aragon, for the tremendous help he has provided 
during the transi on.  She stated that she is looking forward to working at HACA and is thankful 
for the opportunity. 

Commissioner Discussion:  Vice Chairperson McCorriston commented that Ms. Rayz is filling a 
very cri cal role at the agency and that they are happy to have her. 

Commissioner Hannon encouraged Ms. Rayz to reach out to other public agencies and work 
collabora vely with them. 

Commissioner Mayfield and Ms. Broussard Rosen discussed the status of other HACA 
recruitments for key posi ons that are vacant. Ms. Broussard Rosen indicated that HACA is in the 
process of working on a Request for Proprosals for recruitment services.  Mr. Hudda described 
the RFP process and es mated meline.  Commissioner Mayfield commented that one of the 
ques ons during the recruitment process for the Execu ve Director was the amount of outreach.  
Commissioner Ballew commented that the recruitment firm who handled that Execu ve Director 
recruitment noted that ming of that recruitment and the expensive housing costs in California 
were main factors in that recruitment. Commissioner Hannon asked that staff contact the County 
Administrator Office to re-engage discussions about transi oning the authority to the hire the 
Execu ve Director the Housing Commission. 

Item No.7:  Commissioner Reports (Informa on Only) 

None. 

Item No.8:  Adjournment 

There being no further business to discuss, Vice Chairperson McCorriston adjourned the 
mee ng at 9:24 a.m. 

Respec ully submi ed by:  

Melissa Taesali, Execu ve Assistant and Housing Commission Clerk 



 

12 
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S  
REPORT 

June 12, 2024 
 



 

13 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

Mee ng Date:  June 12, 2024 
 
 
 

HACA Waitlist Openings  
HACA recently opened several waitlists from April 2-5, 2024 and for an addi onal day on May 6, 2024. 
During the openings, HACA received over 35,500 applica ons, including approximately 33,000 for the HCV 
(Sec on 8) program and approximately 2,200 for HACA-owned 3- and 4-bedroom project-based voucher 
(PBV) units in Emeryville and Union City.  
 
In addi on to 11 applica on centers hosted by community partners throughout the jurisdic on, HACA 
assisted applicants at the main office, including over 250 applicants who used on-site computers and over 
75 applicants who called for staff support to complete their applica ons. 
 
HACA is in the process of conduc ng the lo eries to randomly select those applicants who will be placed 
on the waitlists. HACA will place 5,000 applicants on the HCV (Sec on 8) program waitlist, 1,500 applicants 
on 3-bedroom PBV waitlists, and 500 applicants on 4-bedroom PBV waitlists. Once the lo ery drawings 
are completed, all those who submi ed applica ons will be no fied of their status by late August. 
 
July Housing Commission Mee ng Change:  
Staff is reques ng a change to the mee ng date for the Commission’s July mee ng and would like to set 
the date for Wednesday, July 24, in order to allow adequate me for comple on of the required annual 
assessment for HUD’s Sec on Eight Management Assessment Program (SEMAP). HACA has a standard 
prac ce of moving the Housing Commission’s July mee ng to later in the month for these SEMAP 
requirements. HACA’s SEMAP submission to HUD is due 60 days a er the end of HACA’s fiscal year. 
 
HACA Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Resource Fair  
The annual FSS Resource Fair is scheduled for Saturday, July 27, 2024, from 10:30 a.m.-1:00 p.m. at HACA. 
This is an opportunity for FSS par cipants to learn about services and resources from a variety of 
community partners that can assist them in reaching their Contract of Par cipa on (COP) goals. HACA is 
s ll finalizing the details but has already confirmed par cipa on for the following organiza ons: Rubicon 
Programs, A-1 Community Housing Services, Hayward Library, Davis Street Community Center, Hayward 
Fire Department, Five Keys Schools & Programs, and JobTrain. 
 
HUD Update on HOTMA/HIP Implementa on 
As discussed and approved at the April Housing Commission Mee ng, HACA revised the Housing Choice 
Voucher (HCV) Program Administra ve Plan due to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development’s (HUD) implementa on of Sec ons 102 and 104 of the Housing Opportunity Through 
Moderniza on Act of 2016 (HOTMA). However, the implementa on of these policies is deferred un l 
January 1, 2025, or when HACA transi ons to HUD’s Housing Informa on Portal (HIP), whichever is 
later. HIP will be HUD’s new pla orm for housing authori es to submit applicant and par cipant data to 
HUD. 



 

14 
 

 
On April 24, 2024, HUD issued a no ce to housing authori es with limited informa on about the ming 
of the upcoming transi on to HIP. Based on the no ce, HACA expects a transi on period in Late Summer 
2024 – Fall 2024 during which there will be no access to HUD data systems for applicant/par cipant data. 
HUD will begin no fying housing authori es of their access to the new HIP system beginning in Fall 2024.  
HUD will also provide addi onal guidance to housing authori es to address or mi gate disrup ons to 
systems and opera ons, including impacts to SEMAP.  
 
The implementa on date for revised program policies will be confirmed a er HACA receives more 
informa on from HUD on the specific dates for HACA’s transi on to HIP.  
 
 



 

15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
June 12, 2024 



 

16 
 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

Meeting: June 12, 2024 
 

Subject: Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 

Exhibits Attached: Attachment A: Audit Report 

Recommendation: Accept Report 

Financial Statement: None 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

The Housing Authority’s (HACA) audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, was completed 
by the auditors, Harshwal & Company, LLP, on March 19, 2024. 

 
Harshwal & Company, LLP performed a “single audit,” as HACA received over $750,000 of federal 
funding during the fiscal year. The audit was designed and conducted in the areas of financial 
operation, internal control and OMB Circular A-133 compliance. 

 
Included in the audit report is HACA’s non-profit component unit, Preserving Alameda County 
Housing, Inc. (PACH). 

 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 

 
 Indepen dent Audit or’s R epo rt (pages 1-3) 
In the independent auditor's report addressed to the Board of Commissioners, Harshwal & 
Company, LLP opines that HACA’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 
were stated fairly in all material respects. 

 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (pages 4-11) 
The MD&A serves as an introduction to the agency wide financial statements and is an overview 
of HACA’s financial activity. It highlights changes in our financial position as well as identifies 
significant financial and individual fund issues. It also discusses the current year's results in 
comparison to the prior year’s, with emphasis on the current year. 



 

17 
 

The Statement of Net Position presents information about HACA’s financial and capital 
resources (assets) and its obligations to creditors (liabilities), and is similar to a balance sheet. 
The Authority-Wide Statement of Net Position is shown on Table 1, page 6. 

 
 Total assets and deferred outflow of resources was $74.67 million. 
 Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resources was $28.79 million. 
 Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $45.88 million (net position) and consist of the 

following: 
 

o $8.56 million is invested in capital assets. This includes land, buildings and 
improvements, and furniture and equipment net of accumulated 
depreciation. 

o $19.34 million are restricted net position and include (1) restricted monies 
received from the net proceeds of the disposition of the former Arroyo Vista 
public housing project in Dublin, (2) PACH replacement (capital) reserves, and 
(3) Housing Assistance Payment Advances received from HUD. 

o $17.98 million are unrestricted net position and include the Housing 
Development Fund, Park Terrace (Hayward), Ocean Avenue (Emeryville), and 
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) reserves and may be used to meet ongoing 
obligations. 

 
Total assets and deferred outflow of resources increased by approximately $5.58 M due to 
increases in cash, investments, and accounts receivable. 

 
Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resources increased by approximately $4.11 M, 
primarily due to increase in accounts payable and unearned revenues and decrease 
in deferred inflows related to pension liabilities and OPEB. Net pension liability was 
$11.99M and net OPEB (Other Post-Employment Benefits)  liability was $0.78 M.  Please refer 
to Note 6 on pages 29-36, Note 7 on pages 37-43 and pages 50-54 for more information. 

 
Total net position increased by $1.47 million-- it was $45.88 million in 2023 and $44.41 million 
in 2022. 

 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reports HACA’s revenues 
by source and type and its expenses by category to substantiate the change in net position 
(similar to net income or loss) for the fiscal year. 

 
 Table 2 on page 8 shows total revenue (excluding Housing Assistance Payments- 

portability in) of $169.42 million in 2023 compared to $166.58 million in 2022,  
 



 

18 
 

 
 HUD provided the majority of HACA’s total revenue ($155.59 million or 91.%) so 

changes in HUD funding greatly impact operating results. The HCV program received 
$148.80 million in funding, which was $0.84 million more than the previous year’s 
amount of $147.96 million.   

 
o Total Revenue was 

$171.42 million 
compared to $168.84 
million in 2022. 
Rental revenue was 
relatively flat 
compared to the 
previous year. 

 
 

 
o Total expenses were $169.58 million compared to $161.01 million in 2022, an 

increase of $8.58 million. The largest program expenditure, as reflected in the pie 
chart below, was for housing assistance payments (HAP). 

 
 



 

19 
 

Audited Financial Statements (pages 12-16 and 55-70) 
Harshwal & Company, LLP conducted an audit of the financial statements of each of the 
programs administered by HACA. Each program is considered a separate accounting entity 
with its own assets, liabilities, net position, revenues and expenses. 

 
Pages 12-13 show the Statement of Net Position for all programs. Pages 55-60 show the 
individual funds that make up the total. 

 
The Housing Choice Voucher program has a total net position of $0.42 M. 

The Housing Development Fund has a total net position balance of $8.01 M. 

Preserving Alameda County Housing, Inc. (PACH), which owns all 230 former public housing 
units, had total assets of $34.61 M, total liabilities of $0.39 M and net position of $34.22 
million. Included in the Assets and Net Position are Notes Receivable from Eden Housing in the 
amount of 14.22 million. It had total revenues of $5.95million and expenses of $4.44 million. 
See also Note 14 on pages 47 and 48. 

 
Park Terrace had a net position balance of $1.77 million and Ocean Avenue had $0.98 
 million. 

 
Pages 14 and 59-60 show the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 
As your Commission will note, the change in net position includes depreciation expense. 
While depreciation is treated as an expense that reduces the results of operations, it does not 
have an impact on restricted or unrestricted net position. When the depreciation expense and, 
in some instances, changes due to acquisitions, dispositions and improvements of capital 
assets are excluded, the change in net position balances shows the actual operating income 
or loss for the year. 

 
The Housing Choice Voucher program had a net income of $1.71 Million.  

 
The Housing Development Fund had a net income of $0.99 Million*. 

 
PACH had a net income of $2.26 million*. 

 

Ocean Avenue had a net operating income of 27,455*.     

P ark Terrace had a net operating income of 135,785*. 

*Excluding depreciation 

 Summa ry of Audit or’s Reports  
In the Report on Internal Control over Financial Repor ng and on Compliance and Other Matters 
based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for each Major Federal 



 

20 
 

Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133 (pages 71- 
72), the following were reported: 

 
 No material weaknesses were identified from the testing and evaluation of HACA’s 

internal control system. 
 In testing HACA’s compliance with certain provisions and requirements applicable to 

the programs it administered, the auditors did not identify any instances of 
noncompliance with program requirements. 

 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Section 1 – Summary of Auditor’s Results (page 78) 
Harshwal & Company, LLP issued an unmodified opinion on HACA’s financial statements. This 
means that HACA complied with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and that our 
financial statements were presented, in all material aspects, appropriately and fairly. HACA is 
considered a low-risk auditee based on past experience and overall evaluation of its operations 
and because a single audit has been conducted in prior years where there were no material 
weaknesses identified. 

 
Sections II and III (page 79) – There were no financial statement findings or non-compliance 
issues identified in this and the prior fiscal year. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that your Commission accept the audited financial statements and reports 
for all HACA programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

21 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting: June 12, 2024 
 

Subject: Operating Budgets for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025 
  

Exhibits Attached:  Resolution No. 04-24 
 Statement of Budgeted Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 

Position FYE June 30, 2025; Supporting Schedule of Expenses 
  

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 04-24 Approving Budgets 
  

Financial Statement: See below 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
HACA’s 2024-2025 fiscal year (FY) starts on July 1, 2024, and will end on June 30, 2025. HUD funding, 
which is provided on a calendar year (CY) basis, is HACA’s primary source of income. This requires 
staff to estimate HUD funding for January to June 2025, the second half of our fiscal year. 
 
On May 2 2 , 2024, a draft budget was presented to and reviewed in detail by your Commission’s 
Budget/Audit/Negotiations (BAN) Committee. The Committee discussed the budget in detail 
and recommends that your Commission approve the budgets as presented. 
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
A summary of four program budgets is presented--one each for the Housing Choice Voucher 
(HCV) Program, the Housing Development Fund, Park Terrace and Ocean Avenue. An agency-wide 
summary of changes to net positions is provided as well. Key assumptions and facts are shown under 
each program below, in bulleted form. 
 
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program 
 
For CY 2024, the HCV Program HAP renewal funding is provided at 100% of renewal needs based 
on prior years HAP expense with an inflation factor of 1.028%. This is the funding used to make 
rental subsidy payments to landlords on behalf of tenants and cannot be used for administration. In 
CY 2023, it was at 100% proration with a 1 . 0 2 7 % inflation factor.  



 

22 
 

The Administrative Fee funding for CY 2024 is at approximately 9 5 % of formula fee eligibility. It was 
set at 97.3% for CY 2023. The FY 2024-2025 budget presented today assumes 95% funding levels for 
Administrative Fees for the second half of the fiscal year. We will not know the actual funding levels 
until Congress adopts a budget for federal fiscal year 2025 (October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025). 
Note that if there is no final budget by October 1, Congress must adopt a continuing resolution until a 
budget is approved. If no continuing resolution is adopted the federal government shuts down. 
 
HACA’s FY 2024-2025 HCV budget projects an operating income of $461,847. The FY 2023-2024 HCV budget 
projected a loss of $261,014. However, HUD has funded administrative fees at 97% of fee eligibility (budget 
assumption of 89.5%) which will eliminate the budgeted loss. The budgeted surplus of $639,165 will be 
required to fund the unfunded Net Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability of $11.4 
million as of June 30, 2023. 
 
Income 
 
 Currently, HACA’s Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) per unit cost (PUC) is $1,841 per month. Staff 

anticipates that the increases in the PUC experienced in the current fiscal year will continue but 
at a slower pace. Higher rents and requested rent increases will exert upward pressure on the PUC. 
The proposed budget assumes an annual average 94% lease-up rate and an average HAP of $1,855 
PUC per month. By law, HAP funds are restricted to rental subsidy payments only and cannot be 
used for operating or administrative costs. 
 

 HUD compensates housing authorities for the cost of administering the HCV program through 
Administrative Fees. Administrative Fees are the main source of funding to cover operating costs 
and are paid based on the number of units leased as of the first day of each month. Every housing 
authority’s eligibility is pro-rated, if needed, to ensure that fees paid do not exceed the funds 
appropriated by Congress. For more than a decade, Congress has reduced Administrative Fee funding 
and many housing authorities, including HACA, have implemented cost cutting measures and used 
their UNP to balance the budget.  
 
Due to proration, income from HCV program Administrative Fees is set at the current 95% of 
formula eligibility for the first six months of the fiscal year (July to December 2024) and staff is 
assuming the same for the balance of the fiscal year (January to June 2025). This 95% may end up 
being s l ight ly higher or lower, depending on HUD’s final reconciliation, which typically happens 
at the end of the calendar year. 
 

 Other fees earned include: modest fees to administer the CHOICES/FACT, Moderate Rehabilitation, 
and Shelter Plus Care programs, and portability fees. The projection for our incoming portability 
reflects an average of 60 contracts that HACA will bill other housing authorities. HACA earns only 80% 
of the prorated Administrative Fees for these contracts. The average fee used in the budget is $100.28 
per portability unit per month, which is about $25 less per unit than what HACA earns for its own 
voucher contracts. Staff projects an average of 100 contracts that will move into other housing 
authorities’ jurisdictions (i.e., outgoing portability). 
 

 Other income includes the HUD grant for the FSS Program, investment income and the fraud 
recovery income which, per HUD regulations, is split 50/50 between HACA and HUD.  

 
 Total overall income increased by 11%, primarily due to the combined effect of the increase in the 

administrative fee rate, increased lease ups and increased FSS grant.  



 

23 
 

Expenses 
 
Housing Choice Voucher Program 
 

 Indirect costs associated with more than one program are allocated using the percentage of total 
program unit method. Indirect salaries are allocated using the percentage of payroll method.  
 

 Total overall expenses increased by 5%, due to increases in salaries and benefits expenses caused by the 
addition of 2 new funded positions (Administrative Analyst I/II and Eligibility Technician) as well as wage 
inflation. This was offset by charging costs for direct support to PACH. Banking charges are net of interest 
earned on balances. They are based on current experience and listed as a separate line item. The increase 
in interest earnings due to higher interest rates has substantially offset banking costs. They are offset by 
interest income. Legal fees include fees for HACA’s general counsel, employment counsel, and additional 
counsel for HUD program and housing-related matters. HACA anticipates increases in employment 
counsel fees related to an assessment of personnel policies and upcoming labor negotiations as well as 
increased fees for housing-related matters to ensure compliance with new HUD regulations. Estimated 
expenses also include the contingency for unanticipated legal matters during the fiscal year. Legal fees 
related to litigation are generally reimbursed by insurance and both reimbursements as well as expenses 
are accounted for on a gross basis. 
 

 For FY 23-24, HACA budgeted projected expenses for multiple wait list openings but only proceeded with 
a portion of the openings in the fiscal year. The projected wait list expenses for FY 24-25 are for the 
remaining wait list openings that will occur in the coming fiscal year. 
 

 The budget includes an addition of 2(two) new positions. An additional Administrative Analyst I/II and an 
Eligibility Technician position are necessary to ensure operational capacity given the incremental growth 
of the HCV program through Special Purpose Voucher awards (VASH/Mainstream), Emergency Housing 
Vouchers, and additional issuance of vouchers to ensure full program utilization. The Administrative 
Analyst I/II position is responsible for ensuring HACA’s program operations are compliant with HUD 
regulations, performing HUD reporting and data submission requirements, as well as administering 
Project Based Voucher (PBV) contracts and HACA’s waitlists. The Eligibility Technician processes annual 
and interim recertifications for current program participants, for which the number continues to increase 
with program growth. 
 

 
 The budget assumes modest increases in health care premiums as well as HACA’s employer retirement 

contributions to ACERA. Additional retirement expenses may be incurred due to ACERA’s asset 
performance vs assumed rate of return depending on ACERA’s actuarial study and the employer 
contribution rate set for HACA by the ACERA Board. 

 
 The budget projects an income of $461,847, which will be used to cover the unfunded Pension and OPEB 

liability. The projected unrestricted reserve balance at the end of the budget year is $1.2 million. 
 

 
Housing Development Fund, Park Terrace, and Ocean Avenue 
 

 HACA maintains a Housing Development Fund (HDF-Local) for low-income housing development and 
rehabilitation and management improvements. 



 

24 
 

 The HDF-Local Fund funds salaries, benefits and other indirect costs not allocated to the HCV program in 
its budget. These expenses will be charged to non-HCV projects (PACH, Ocean Avenue, Park Terrace) as 
property management fees. 

 
 HDF-Local Fund also has the net pension liability balance pertaining to employees whose salaries are not 

directly allocated to the HCV program. While the amount is unknown at this time, additional retirement 
expenses are expected to be incurred based on the results of the actuarial valuation at end of the calendar 
year 2023 shared by ACERA with the employers. 
 

 The HDF-Local Fund budget projects an income of $1,070,550 as compared to $1,098,158 in FY2023-2024. 
The projected reserve balance at the end of the budget year is $7.19 million. 
 

 Park Terrace consists of nine units in the City of Hayward that are rented to low-income families. Park 
Terrace’s budget projects a net income of $139,212. The projected reserve balance at the end of the 
budget year is $1.63 million. 
 

 Ocean Avenue consists of six units in the City of Emeryville that were developed using a variety of funding 
sources, including HUD’s HOME program. There are no rental subsidies unless a Section 8 voucher holder 
chooses to move in. All units are rented to low-income families at rents required by the HOME program, 
which range from $1,003 to $1,280 per month. Ocean Avenue’s budget projects a net income of $23,660. 
The projected reserve balance at the end of the budget year is $490,830.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Budget/Audit/Negotiating Committee has reviewed the budget with staff in detail and recommends 
that your Commission adopt the Resolution approving the proposed operating budget and budgeted 
positions for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025, as presented. 
 



 

25 
 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 
RESOLUTION NO.:  04-24 

 
APPROVING THE OPERATING BUDGET AND BUDGETED POSITIONS  

FOR THE JULY 1, 2024 – JUNE 30, 2025 FISCAL YEAR 
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda operates on a July 1 – June 30 fiscal 

year and HUD funding is provided on a calendar year basis; and 
 

WHEREAS, operating budgets for the Housing Authority’s various programs must be adopted 
prior to the beginning of the fiscal year July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission’s Budget/Audit/Negotiations Committee has reviewed the proposed 
budgets developed by staff and recommends approval; and 
 

WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2024-2025 has continuing challenges, including rising costs of 
operations and the uncertainty of future federal funding;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Housing Commission does hereby approve the 
proposed budgets, budgeted positions and supporting schedules for the various programs as presented 
with a total expenditure authority of $142,101,544 for Housing Assistance Payments and $12,422,627 for 
operating expenses.  

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the Housing A uthority of the 

County of Alameda on this 12th day of June 2024 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

EXCUSED: 

ABSENT: 

Attest:   
  Yang Shao 

Housing Commission Chairperson 
Laura Broussard Rosen 
Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary 

 
Adopted:  

 
 
 



 

26 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
Budget Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Assets 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved   
2024

Proposed 
2025

Approved 
2024

Proposed 
2025

Approved 
2024

Proposed 
2025

Approved 
2024

Proposed 
2025

Approved 
2024

Proposed 
2025

Housing Assistance Payments (HAP)
Est. HUD PHA grants-HAP 142,397,836   142,101,544 142,397,836 142,101,544 
Less:  Est. HAP expenses 142,397,836   142,101,544 142,397,836 142,101,544 

-                       -                       

Operating Income

Rental revenue - tenants -                         -                       156,000       168,000          198,387        228,444          81,996     90,660     436,383          487,104          
Other revenue -tenants -                         -                       -                    -                        -                      -                        50              50             50                    50                    
HUD PHA grants 10,038,998      11,237,302    -                    -                        -                      -                        -                 -                10,038,998    11,237,302    
Other revenue 280,518            378,000          42,500         5,000               -                      -                        1,000        -                324,018          383,000          
Property management fees -                         -                       1,780,440   1,780,440       1,780,440      1,780,440      
Investment income -                         -                       200,000       175,000          20,000          40,000             1,000        15,000     221,000          230,000          

Total 10,319,516      11,615,302    2,178,940   2,128,440       218,387        268,444          84,046     105,710  12,800,889    14,117,896    
11% -2% 19% 20% 9%

Operating Expenses 6%

Administrative salaries (5,327,155)      (5,779,848)    (345,427)     (358,716)         -                      -                        -                 -                (5,672,582)    (6,138,564)    
Administrative expenses (2,040,080)      (1,956,100)    (153,840)     (146,950)         (66,550)         (68,050)           (46,200)    (48,500)   (2,306,670)    (2,219,600)    
Utilities -                         -                       (70,232)       (69,800)           (500)               (500)                 (7,500)      (10,950)   (78,232)          (81,250)          
Maintenance services -                         -                       (196,926)     (136,900)         (53,882)         (55,182)           (21,250)    (19,000)   (272,058)        (211,082)        
General expenses (176,817)          (180,793)        (18,129)       (18,129)           (5,100)           (5,500)             (3,570)      (3,600)     (203,616)        (208,022)        
Employee benefits (3,036,478)      (3,236,714)    (296,228)     (327,395)         -                      -                        -                 -                (3,332,706)    (3,564,109)    

Total (10,580,530)    (11,153,455)  (1,080,782) (1,057,890)     (126,032)      (129,232)         (78,520)    (82,050)   (11,865,864)  (12,422,627)  
5% -2% 2% 4% 4%

Budgeted Income (Loss) (261,014)      461,847          1,098,158 1,070,550       92,355       139,212          5,525     23,660     935,025      1,695,269      

Unrestricted Net Position (UNP) - est. balance at 7/1/2023 ** (1,037,114)    4,949,334       1,535,997       544,470  5,992,687      
Unrestricted Net Position - budgeted bal. at 6/30/2025 1,027,941      7,194,134       1,631,709       490,830  10,344,614    

Capital Expenditures per schedule -                       40,600             43,500             77,300     161,400          

UNP @ 7/1/23 (1,037,114)    4,949,334       

Est. UNP @ 7/1/24 (Excl uding NPL) 11,987,518    7,479,420       
Budgeted Income (los s) @ 6/30/25 461,847          1,070,550       

Subtota l  @ 6/30/25 12,449,365    8,549,970       
Esti mated NPL & OPEB @ 06/30/2025 (11,421,424)  (1,355,836)     

Est. UNP @ 6/30/25 1,027,941      7,194,134       

TotalsHousing Choice Voucher 
Housing Development 

Fund Park Terrace Ocean Avenue



 

27 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
Schedule of Administra ve Expenses 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Administrative Expenses
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025 2024 2025
Legal Fees* 50,000 120,000 50,000     50,000        -                 -              1,000 1,000 101,000       171,000    
Staff Training 30,000 36,000 -                  -                 -              -                 -             30,000          36,000      
Mileage Payments 5,000            1,700        1,200        1,000          -                 -              -                 -             6,200            2,700        
Conference Travel 45,000          47,000      -                 -                  -                 -              -                 -             45,000          47,000      
Auditing Fees 32,000          32,000      5,200        5,200          -                 -              -                 -             37,200          37,200      
Office Bldg. Expenses 156,000       168,000    -                 -                  -                 -              -                 -             156,000       168,000    
Office Supplies 56,000          50,000      4,000        3,000          -                 -              -                 -             60,000          53,000      
Copier expense 17,000          17,000      -                 -                  -                 -              -                 -             17,000          17,000      
Non-Cap Furn & Eqpt 15,000          30,000      1,800        1,800          -                 -              -                 -             16,800          31,800      
Admin. Vehicles 55,000          5,000        -                 -                  -                 -              -                 -             55,000          5,000        
Publications- 25,000          50,000      -                 -                  -                 -              -                 -             25,000          50,000      
Recruitment exp 50,000          50,000      5,000        5,000          -                 -              -                 -             55,000          55,000      
Membership Dues 25,000          27,600      200           200             -                 -              -                 -             25,200          27,800      
Telephone 40,000          25,000      4,310        1,500          -                 -              -                 -             44,310          26,500      
Contract/Consultant Svcs 655,600       609,700    42,789     46,200        250           250         500           500        699,139       656,650    
Computer Software Svcs 399,180       425,400    16,841     10,550        -                 -              -                 -             416,021       435,950    
Miscellaneous Admin 2,500            4,000        1,000        1,000          -                 -              -                 -             3,500            5,000        
Non-Cap Furn & Eqpt-MIS 45,000          55,000      -                 -                  -                 -              -                 -             45,000          55,000      
Leases or Rentals 25,000          25,000      1,000        1,000          -                 -              -                 -             26,000          26,000      
Equipment Maintenance 700                700           -                 -                  -                 -              -                 -             700                700           
Postage 65,000          65,000      -                 -                  -                 -              -                 -             65,000          65,000      
Printing 45,000          45,000      -                 -              -                 -             45,000          45,000      
Bank Charges 96,000          25,000      2,000        2,000          1,500        3,000      1,000        3,300     100,500       33,300      
Commission Meetings 6,600            7,000        -                 -                  -                 -              -                 -             6,600            7,000        
Miscellaneous 1,500            -                -                  -              500           500        2,000            500           
Wait List Expense 97,000          35,000      -             -                  -                 -              -                 -             97,000          35,000      
Scholarship expense -                     -                18,500     18,500        -                 -              -                 -             18,500          18,500      
Property Management Fee -                     -                -                 -                  64,800     64,800    43,200     43,200   108,000       108,000    

TOTAL 2,040,080 1,956,100 153,840 146,950      66,550   68,050    46,200   48,500   2,306,670 2,219,600 
-4% -5% 2% 5% -4%

Contract/Consultant Svcs
Contract Services-H. A. Marketplace 5,000        
Contract Services-NMA 35,000      
Contract Services-NCR 30,000      
Contract Services-Misc 114,100    31,200        
Temporary Personnel 250,000    5,000          
Contract Services-Inspec. 150,000    
Payroll Services&FSA Fees 25,600      4,000          
Employee Awards 6,000          

609,700    46,200        
Legal Fees* Legal fees for litigation are generally reimbursed by insurance but need to be budgeted as an expense for expenditure authority

Housing Choice Voucher 
Housing Development 

Fund Park Terrace Ocean Avenue Totals



 

28 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
Schedule of Maintenance Expenses 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Maintenance Expenses
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025

Materials

Repair Parts -                 -              1,645     1,000      1,500     1,000      1,500     1,000      4,645        3,000      
Appliances & Fixtures -                 -              -             -              2,000     2,000      2,000     2,000      4,000        4,000      
Locks and Keys -                 -              -             -              -             -              -             -              -                 -              

Maintenance & Contracts

Garbage Service -                 -              28,573   22,000    -             -              3,000     3,000      31,573      25,000    
Repair Contractors -                 -              41,660   18,000    5,000     7,500      5,000     7,000      51,660      32,500    
Other Maintenance -                 -              53,737   64,500    -             -              2,500     1,000      56,237      65,500    
Equipment Repair/Rental -                 -              3,464     1,000      -             -              -             -              3,464        1,000      
Window Coverings -                 -              -             -              1,200     750         750        500         1,950        1,250      
Condo Fees -                 -              -             -              43,432   43,432    -             -              43,432      43,432    
Landscape Services -                 -              8,158     8,000      -             -              6,000     4,000      14,158      12,000    
Contract cost- 10th St. 20,000   10,000    20,000      10,000    
Contract cost-Atherton Bldg. -                 -              43,000   12,400    -             -              -             -              43,000      12,400    
Miscellaneous -                 -              -             -              750        500         500        500         1,250        1,000      

TOTAL -             -              200,237 136,900  53,882   55,182    21,250   19,000    275,369 211,082  
-46% 2% -12% -30%

Housing Choice 
Voucher 

Housing 
Development Fund Park Terrace Ocean Avenue Totals



 

29 
 

 
 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
Schedule of General Expenses 

FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR ENDING JUNE 

30, 2025 

 
 

General Expenses
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025
Approved 

2024
Proposed 

2025

General Liability Insurance 30,000    40,000      -              -              -                   -            -                  -              30,000         40,000      
Auto Insurance 5,000      5,000        -              -              -                   -            -                  -              5,000           5,000        
Worker's Compensation 114,817  125,793    -              -              -                   -            -                  -              114,817       125,793    
Unemployment 27,000    10,000      -              -              -                   -            -                  -              27,000         10,000      
Property Insurance -                   -               18,129    18,129    4,100          4,500    2,700         2,700       24,929         25,329      
Collection Loss -                   -               -              -              -                   -            -                  -              -                    -               
Miscellaneous -                   -               -              -              1,000          1,000    870             900          1,870           1,900        

TOTAL 176,817  180,793    18,129    18,129    5,100       5,500    3,570      3,600       203,616    208,022    
2% 0% 7% 1% 2%

Housing Choice 
Voucher 

Housing Development 
Fund Park Terrace Ocean Avenue Totals



 

30 
 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

Schedule of Capital Expenditures 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description

Gutters 3500 3,500     
Fence 12,500 12,500   
Windows 15,000 15,000   
Unit Rehab 37,500   37,500 75,000   
Roof Replacements -             
Appliance replacements 2,500     2,500   5,000     
Kitchen cabinet replacements 3,500     3,500   7,000     
Tree Trimming 5,600       2,800   8,400     
HVAC 25,000     -             25,000   
Workstations 10,000     10,000   

TOTAL 40,600     43,500   77,300 161,400 

Ocean 
Avenue

Housing 
Development 

Fund Park Terrace Totals



 

31 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
Budgeted Posi ons 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Full-Time
Equivalent

(FTE) Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum

Account Specialist** 5 4,625$     $   5,497  $     55,500  $    65,969 32,190$   38,262$    87,690$    104,230$ 
Accountant 1 7,358$     $10,927 88,296$     $  131,124 51,212$   76,052$    139,508$ 207,176$ 
Financial Accounting Manager 1 10,397$  $15,440 124,764$   $  185,280 72,363$   107,462$ 197,127$ 292,742$ 
Administrative Analyst I/II* 3 7,358$     $11,767 88,296$     $  141,204 51,212$   81,898$    139,508$ 223,102$ 
Administrative Clerk ** 9 4,612$     $   5,239 55,341$     $    62,868 32,098$   36,463$    87,439$    99,331$    
Deputy Executive Director  ** 1 12,062$  $17,905 144,744$   $  214,860 83,952$   124,619$ 228,696$ 339,479$ 
Eligibility Leadworker 2 6,253$     $   7,594 75,036$     $    91,128 43,521$   52,854$    118,557$ 143,982$ 
Eligibility Technician  14 4,906$     $   5,831 58,872$     $    69,972 34,146$   40,584$    93,018$    110,556$ 
Executive Assistant 1 6,039$     $   8,968 72,468$     $  107,616 42,031$   62,417$    114,499$ 170,033$ 
Executive Director 1 15,058$  $22,361 180,696$   $  268,332 104,804$ 155,633$ 285,500$ 423,965$ 
Facilities Manager 1 8,747$     $12,989 104,964$   $  155,868 60,879$   90,403$    165,843$ 246,271$ 
Finance Director 1 11,476$  $17,043 137,712$   $  204,516 79,873$   118,619$ 217,585$ 323,135$ 
FSS Coordinator 3 5,220$     $   6,258 62,640$     $    75,095 36,331$   43,555$    98,971$    118,649$ 
FSS Leadworker 1 6,253$     $   7,594 75,036$     $    91,128 43,521$   52,854$    118,557$ 143,982$ 
Housing Inspector** 2 5,054$     $   6,060 60,648$     $    72,716 35,176$   42,175$    95,824$    114,891$ 
Housing Specialist** 10 5,796$     $   6,955 69,552$     $    83,460 40,340$   48,407$    109,892$ 131,867$ 
Housing Technician 2 4,726$     $   5,740 56,712$     $    68,874 32,893$   39,947$    89,605$    108,821$ 
Human Resources Manager 1 9,419$     $13,988 113,028$   $  167,856 65,556$   97,356$    178,584$ 265,212$ 
Information Technology Manager 1 10,397$  $15,440 124,764$   $  185,280 72,363$   107,462$ 197,127$ 292,742$ 
Leasing Services Leadworker 3 6,253$     $   7,594 75,036$     $    91,124 43,521$   52,852$    118,557$ 143,975$ 
Maintenance Worker II 3 6,732$     $   6,732 80,787$     $    80,787 46,857$   46,857$    127,644$ 127,644$ 
Procurement Manager** 1 7,924$     $11,767 95,088$     $  141,204 55,151$   81,898$    150,239$ 223,102$ 
Housing Programs Manager 2 10,397$  $15,440 124,764$   $  185,280 72,363$   107,462$ 197,127$ 292,742$ 
Property Aide (Part Time) 4
Property Management Administrator 1 7,004$     $10,401 69,849$     $  103,726 40,512$   60,161$    110,361$ 163,887$ 
Property Management Assistant 1 5,220$     $   6,258 62,640$     $    75,095 36,331$   43,555$    98,971$    118,649$ 
Secretary 1 4,529$     $   5,519 54,348$     $    66,222 31,522$   38,409$    85,870$    104,631$ 
Senior Administrative Analyst 1 8,533$     $12,672 102,396$   $  152,064 59,390$   88,197$    161,786$ 240,261$ 
Special Programs Manager 1 9,419$     $13,988 113,028$   $  167,856 65,556$   97,356$    178,584$ 265,212$ 

Total 78
* New posi tions: Management position
** Vacant pos i tions :

Procurement Manager (1), Deputy Executive Di rector (1)

Classification

Monthly Salary 
Range Annual Salary Range

Adminis trative Analyst I/II (1), El igibi l i ty Technician (1)

Hous ing Speci al i st (1), Housing Inspector (1), Housing Programs Manager (1)

Total Annual Salary 
plus Benefit Range

Annual Estimated 
Benefit Range

Adminis trative Clerk (1), Account Specia l i st (1), El i gibi l i ty Technician (1)



 

32 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Mee ng Date:  June 12, 2024 
 

Subject: Contribu on to Alameda County Employees’ Re rement Associa on (ACERA) 
for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

  
Exhibits A ached: Resolu on No. 05-24 
  
Recommenda on: Adopt  Resolu on No. 05-24 
  
Financial Statement: $344,137.00 to be included in FY 2024-2025 Budget 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Housing Authority is a par cipa ng employer in the Alameda County Employees’ Re rement 
Associa on (ACERA).  In 1996, ACERA established a health benefits account, called a 401(h) account, to 
sa sfy the requirements of Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Sec on 401(h) for providing non-vested, tax-free 
healthcare to the re rees of par cipa ng employers. 
 
In 2006, changes to the IRC regula ons required that par cipa ng employers establish a separate 401(h) 
sub-account under the overall ACERA account and make contribu ons through ACERA designated 
specifically for healthcare benefits to fund the 401(h) sub-account.  To con nue providing HACA re rees 
with non-taxable health benefits, your Commission adopted a resolu on in June 2006 (Resolu on No. 14-
06) that authorized ACERA to establish and manage a 401(h) sub-account on our behalf. 
 
In accordance with Sec on 31592.4 and Ar cle 5.5 of the CERL, ACERA holds assets in a Supplemental 
Re rees’ Benefits Reserve (SRBR).  Once HACA makes its designated 401(h) contribu on to ACERA, ACERA 
will automa cally transfer the same amount from the SRBR to HACA’s Advance Reserve Account.  ACERA 
has consistently paid supplemental re rement and post-employment health care benefits through the 
SRBR since 1985. 
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
Your Commission has authorized HACA’s contribu on to its 401(h) sub-account every year since 2006.  
The Segal Company, ACERA’s actuary, has determined that HACA’s contribu on for fiscal year July 1, 2024 
– June 30, 2025, is $344,137.00.  ACERA requires that your authoriza on to fund HACA’s 401(h) sub-
account be completed by June 30, 2024. 



 

33 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 05-24 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 401(h) ACCOUNT PURSUANT TO SECTION 31592 
 
 WHEREAS, in 1996, the Alameda County Employee’s Re rement Associa on (“ACERA”) Board of 
Re rement informed the Board of Supervisors that, by adop on  of Resolu on 96-111, the Board of Re rement 
had established a health benefits account intended to sa sfy the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code 
(“IRC”) Sec on 401(h) and the regula ons thereunder (the “401(h) Account”) in order to provide non-vested, 
tax-free health benefits to eligible County and Par cipa ng Employer re rees (collec vely, the “Re rees”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 1996, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolu on No. R-96-634, which provided that 
ACERA could offer such non-taxable benefits if the County designated a por on of its contribu on to ACERA 
for a fiscal year as a contribu on to the 401(h) Account; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under Sec on 31592.4 and Ar cle 5.5 of the County Employees Re rement Law of 1937 
(“CERL”), assets in the Supplemental Re ree Benefit Reserves (the “SRBR”) at the end of a fiscal year of ACERA 
may, in the immediately succeeding fiscal year, be transferred to the Employer Advance Reserve account of 
the Par cipa ng Employers, and treated as a contribu on to ACERA by the County and as applicable by other 
Par cipa ng Employers to the extent that in the immediately succeeding fiscal year the County and other 
Par cipa ng Employers make contribu ons to ACERA’s 401(h) Account in order to pay for re ree health 
benefits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sec on 31592.4 and Ar cle 5.5 of the CERL thus permit the Par cipa ng Employers to 
contribute to a 401(h) Account and pay for re ree health benefits for a fiscal year without increasing the 
Housing Authority of the County of Alameda’s (“Housing Authority”) total contribu ons to ACERA for that fiscal 
year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, commencing with the 1996-1997 fiscal year, and for each fiscal year therea er, the County 
has directed that a specified por on of its fiscal year contribu on to ACERA for that year be contributed to the 
401(h) account; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2007 the Housing Authority authorized ACERA to establish and manage a 401(h) sub-
account on its behalf to provide tax free health care benefits for its re rees; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. In fiscal year July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025, Housing Authority shall contribute to ACERA $344,137.00 
to be used only for the paying of re ree medical health benefits.  This contribu on shall be made 
on the terms and condi ons set forth in the Agreement between the Housing Authority and ACERA 
concerning such contribu ons, executed on July 25, 2007. 

 
2. This contribu on shall be designated, in wri ng, as being only for the Housing Authority’s IRC § 

401(h) Account and such designa on shall be made at the me of contribu on. 

 



 

34 
 

Housing Authority of the County of Alameda 
Resolu on No: 05-24:  Approving 401(h) Account Pursuant to Sec on 3159 A 
June 12, 2024 
Page 2 

 
3. Such contribu on is con ngent on the Board of Re rement immediately transferring, in 

accordance with Government Code §31592.4, an amount equal to such contribu on from 
ACERA’s SRBR account to the Housing Authority’s Advance Reserve account.  Such amount 
shall be treated as a contribu on for pension and therefore shall be applied to reduce the 
pension contribu on otherwise required by the Housing Authority for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2024. 

4. No party, including any exis ng or future Housing Authority employee, re ree, spouse, or 
dependent, shall have any vested rights, contractual rights, or other rights in or to any re ree 
health benefits or payment or subsidy for any such benefits nor shall any such person or 
ACERA have any such rights to have the Housing Authority contribute towards paying or 
subsidizing the cost of any re ree medical benefits provided by ACERA under the 401(h) 
Account or otherwise.  The Housing Authority may modify or terminate, at any me and 
without any limita on, its decision to contribute to the Housing Authority’s 401(h) Account.  
This modifica on or termina on may occur even if it may affect any employee first hired prior 
to the date of such modifica on, any person who re red prior to such date, and/or any person 
who became a spouse or dependent of an employee or re ree prior to such date. 

5. All contribu ons by the Housing Authority to its 401(h) sub-account shall be governed by 
requirements of the IRC and all administra ve and other applicable rules established by 
ACERA governing such sub-account and ACERA’s 401(h) Account. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the Housing Authority of the County 
of Alameda on this 12th day of June 2024, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:     

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

EXCUSED:  

ABSENT:  

       A est:  
   

Laura Broussard Rosen  Yang Shao 
Execu ve Director 
Housing Commission Secretary 

 Housing Commission Chairperson 

  Adopted: June 12, 2024 
 



 

35 
 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
Mee ng:  June 14, 2024 

 
Subject: Letter Regarding California SB 1357 
  
Exhibits Attached: Letter Opposing California SB 1357 
  
Recommendation: 
 

Approve Letter and Authorize Executive Director to submit it to 
Members of the California State Legislature 

 
BACKGROUND 
In late February 2024, HACA staff was made aware of a California Senate Bill, SB 1357, proposed 
by Senator Aisha Wahab (District 10). HACA staff had no previous discussions with Sen. Wahab’s 
office prior to the bill being proposed. 
 
The proposed bill is specifically related to HACA’s website and would require HACA to: 

 Conduct an evaluation of its website for accessibility and navigability, including for non-
English Speakers; and, 

 Develop and publish an annual report on its website that includes specific information 
and data regarding its housing programs. 

 
The requirements of the bill apply solely to HACA and not to other housing authori es in the 
state. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Since March, HACA staff has been in communication with Sen. Wahab's office to discuss solutions 
for the proposed bill. HACA staff appreciates Sen. Wahab’s engagement on issues related to 
affordable housing and has reiterated HACA’s shared goals of promoting access to affordable 
housing through increased transparency, including ensuring the website is an accessible and 
useful resource for providing information regarding its housing programs. However, HACA staff 
believes that such legislation is unnecessary for the reasons summarized below. 
 

 HACA’s website already met requirements for providing information and documents 
related to its housing programs, though not all content was prominently located. HACA 
has already made changes to the location of such information on its website to be more 
visible. 
 

 HACA has conducted an accessibility assessment of the website and has already 
implemented changes to enhance options for accessibility adjustments and to make 
existing language options more prominent. HACA continues to work to ensure improved 
accessibility across the website. 



 

36 
 

 
 HACA already complies with all HUD program reporting requirements. In addition, HACA 

includes monthly Program Activity Reports in public Housing Commission agenda 
packets that are available on its website. HACA is already working on plans to increase 
supplemental program information on its website beyond what is required by HUD. 
 

 HACA remains committed to continuing to improve its website to be more user-friendly 
and to ensure that information is readily available, accessible, and understandable to 
the general public and those it serves. 
 

 HACA has communicated a willingness to commit to providing the requested annual 
program information without the proposed legislation. 

 
In addi on, in May, the California Associa on of Housing Authori es (CAHA), a statewide 
associa on represen ng over seventy-five Public Housing Authori es (PHAs) throughout the 
state, submi ed formal opposi on to SB 1357. HACA is a CAHA member and concurs with the 
following reasons cited in CAHA’s objec on to the bill: 
 

(1) The Housing Authority of the County of Alameda is already currently in the process 
of updating its internet website to be easier to navigate for the public, including those 
that are non-English speakers. Additionally, much of what this legislation is asking be 
included on the website is published on the site currently.  

 
(2) The annual report requirement included is data the housing authority already 
provides and is publicly available, meaning this would create duplicative work on an 
already administratively underfunded program. The annual report requires reporting of 
information that is duplicative of what Housing Authorities report to HUD and in public 
budget documents. Housing Authorities provide an enormous amount of data through our 
voucher program operations, including success rate, time from issuance of the voucher to 
lease-up, utilization of funding and vouchers, etc. This data reporting is contained within 
HUD’s database systems and dashboards and is publicly available. CAHA recommends 
collecting the data from existing reports rather than adding additional administrative 
burden. 

 
Though HACA opposes the bill for the above reasons, staff remain commi ed to working 
collabora vely with Sen. Wahab on shared goals. 

 
Staff has dra ed the a ached le er outlining HACA’s objec ons to SB 1357. Staff recommends 
that the Commission review the a ached le er, make any revisions, and authorize the 
Execu ve Director to submit it to Members of the California State Legislature. 
 



 

37 
 

 

 



 

38 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

39 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Mee ng Date:  June 12, 2024 
 

Subject: Approve the 2024 HACA Scholarship and the Donald C. Biddle 
Memorial Scholarship Awards 

  
Exhibits A ached: 2024 HACA Scholarship Commi ee Award Recommenda ons 
  
Recommenda on: Approve the 2024 scholarship awards 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Every year, the HACA Scholarship Program provides an opportunity for par cipants of the Family Self-
Sufficiency (FSS) program and for tenants of the HACA-managed proper es owned by Preserving 
Alameda County Housing, Inc. (PACH), to apply for a scholarship that can be used to pay eligible 
expenses related to their educa on.   
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
This year, staff received 9 applica ons for the 2024 HACA Scholarship and 7 applica ons for the 2024 
Donald C. Biddle Memorial Scholarship.  The applica ons, shown below by city of residence, were 
submi ed to your Commission’s Scholarship Commi ee (Commissioners Chawla, Gerry, and Goldstein) 
for their review.   
 

2024 HACA SCHOLARSHIP  2024 DONALD C. BIDDLE 
MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP  

CITY OF 
RESIDENCE 

# OF 
APPLICATIONS 

 CITY OF 
RESIDENCE 

# OF 
APPLICATIONS 

Castro Valley 1  Castro Valley 1 
Dublin 1  Emeryville 1 
Emeryville 1  Fremont 1 
San Leandro 2  Pleasanton 1 
San Lorenzo 1  San Leandro 1 
Union City 3  San Lorenzo 1 
   Union City 1 

 
A virtual mee ng with the Scholarship Commi ee was held on June 3 to discuss their selec ons and 
recommenda ons for awards.  The commi ee awarded a total of 9 HACA scholarships and 2 Donald C. 
Biddle Memorial Scholarship awards.   The Scholarship Commi ees award recommenda ons are shown 
in the a ached exhibit.  Staff recommends approval of the 2024 scholarship awards. 
 
 



 

40 
 

2024 HACA SCHOLARSHIP COMMITTEE AWARD RECOMMENDATIONS 
HACA SCHOLARSHIP AWARDS 
 

NAME SCHOOL/PROGRAM DEGREE/FIELD OF 
STUDY/CERTIFICATION 

AWARD 

Natasha B. Laney College, Oakland, CA Business Administra on $750 +  
$1000 bonus  

for top applicant 
Alazar H.  Macalester College, St. Paul, MN  Neuroscience $2000 
Surisa K. University of Phoenix Masters – Health Care 

Administra on 
$750 

Ashelee M. Chabot College, Hayward, CA Psychology $750 
Leah M. Ohlone College, Fremont, CA  Special Educa on $750 
Labrisha P. Gurnick Academy Licensed Voca onal Nursing $750 
Carlos R. University of California, Santa Cruz, CA Ecology and Evolu onary Biology $2000 
Dana T. Chabot College, Hayward, CA  Administra ve Assistant, Science $750 
Crystal W. California State, East Bay, Hayward, CA 

Castro Valley Adult and Career 
Educa on, Castro Valley, CA 

HR Management Cer fica on 
Notary Public 

$1750 

 

2024 DONALD C. BIDDLE MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP 
 

NAME ORGANIZATIONS COMMUNITY SERVICE HIGHLIGHTS AWARD 
Alazar H.  St. Michael Ethiopian Orthodox Church 

St. Gabriel & St. Arsema Ethiopian Orthodox Church 
Behavioral Dimensions 
Alameda County Food Bank 
St. Vincent De Paul Food Bank 
 

Alazar shared that he has been serving his Ethiopian community over the last 7 
years through volunteer opportuni es with his Ethiopian Chris an Orthodox 
church.  In addi on to teaching school on Sundays, he also provides 
transporta on for the elderly in his community, volunteers to feed the 
unhoused, and has volunteered for many fundraising ac vi es.  He also shared 
that he works with neurodivergent children.  

$2500 

Angel K. Kiwanis Club of Fremont 
Dreamers 4 Change Founda on 

Angel shared that in 2014, she was awarded a scholarship from the Kiwanis Club 
of Fremont and that through this experience she realized just how important it is 
for children to have a solid founda on in life.  From that point on, Angel began 
volunteering alongside her mentor.  Angel also volunteers with the Dreamers 4 
Change Founda on.  The goal of this organiza on is to give black and indigenous 
girls a “passport experience” through travel.   Angel started out at the organiza on 
as a mentee, became a mentor, and has transi oned to managing all the 
organiza on’s social media pla orms.    

$2500 



 

41 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Mee ng Date:   June 12, 2024 
 

Subject: Nomina ng Commi ee for Housing Commission Officers 
  
Exhibits A ached: None 
  
Recommenda on: Appoint a Nomina ng Commi ee 

 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Housing Commission must appoint a Nomina ng Commi ee to select candidates for the posi ons of 
Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.  The terms are for one year.   
 
The current Chairperson is Commissioner Yang Shao and Commissioner Michael McCorriston is the Vice-
Chairperson.  The Commission bylaws s pulate that the Chairperson can serve no more than two 
successive full terms.  There are no provisions in the bylaws that limit the number of terms the Vice-
Chairperson can serve.   
 
Commissioner Shao and Commissioner McCorriston have served one term and may be nominated for a 
second term if the Housing Commission so chooses.   
 
At the Housing Commission’s July mee ng,  the Nomina ng Commi ee will present the candidates and 
an elec on will be held.  The newly-elected officers will take office immediately and the new Chairperson 
will chair the July mee ng. 
 



 

42 
 

 
 

QUARTERLY  
BUDGET REPORT 

Quarter Ended March 31, 2024 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

43 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Mee ng Date:  June 12, 2024 
 

Subject: Quarterly Budget Report 
  
Exhibits A ached: Budget Report for Quarter ended March 31, 2024 
  
Recommenda on: Receive Report 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Commission approved the FY2023-2024 Budget at their June 2023 mee ng. This quarterly budget 
report informs the Commission about the status as of the end of March 31, 2024 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCV): 
The HCV program received Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) grants in the amount of $126.3 million 
including an advance for April 2024 and paid out $113.7 million through March 2024. Administra ve 
revenues were $9.5 million vs the YTD budget of $7.7 million primarily due to the increase in prora on by 
HUD. The budget assumed a prora on factor of 89.5% and HUD paid fees using a prora on factor of 99% 
Administra ve expenses were $7.12 million vs the YTD budget of $7.9 million. This is primarily due to 
salary and benefit savings caused by vacancies during the year. Staff an cipates that expenses in the 
fourth quarter will be higher due to 5 posi ons hired in late March as well as year-end payroll and expense 
accruals. 
 
Housing Development Fund (HDF): 
HDF revenues were $1.63 million and tracked very close to the YTD budget of $1.64 million. Expenses 
were $691.8 thousand vs the YTD budget of $810.6 thousand. Maintenance, contract, and legal expenses 
were less than an cipated resul ng in greater than budget income of $941.8 thousand.  
 
PACH:  
PACH revenues were slightly higher than budget at $4.27 million primarily due to greater than budgeted 
investment income offset by reduc ons in rental revenues due to unit vacancies. Expenses were $631.5 
thousand less than budget at $3.0 million due to reduced alloca on of salaries and benefits as well as 
other cost savings across the board. Expenses are expected to be higher in the fourth quarter due to year-
end payroll and expense accruals. 
 



 

44 
 



 

45 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROGRAM ACTIVITY  
REPORT 

June 12, 2024 



 

46 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

Meeting: June 12, 2024 

Subject: Programs Activity Report 
  
Exhibits Attached: Section 8 Contract and Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Report; 

Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report; FSS Program Monthly Report 
  
Recommendation: Receive Report 

 
SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS (HCV) 
 
 Lease-Up:  The below chart provides the number of Section 8 HCV program units under contract.  This 

number includes HACA vouchers and portability clients for which we are being billed by the receiving 
housing authority but excludes portability clients for which we are billing the initial housing authority. 

 
6/1/2024 6/1/2023 6/1/2022 

6,933 6,837 6,715 

 
 HCV Program Utilization:  The below chart provides the average HAP subsidy, average tenant-paid 

portion, and average contract rent.  These amounts include HACA vouchers, but do not include incoming 
and outgoing portability clients. 

 
 6/1/2024 6/1/2023 6/1/2022 
Average HAP Subsidy $1,836 $1,772 $1,771 
Average Tenant-Paid Rent $619 $614 $563 
Average Contract Rent $2,455 $2,386 $2,334 

 
 The below chart provides the outgoing billed portability contracts (i.e., HACA voucher holders who 

are housed in another housing authority’s jurisdiction) and incoming portability contracts where 
HACA billed other housing authorities.  

 
 6/1/2024 6/1/2023 6/1/2022 
Outgoing Billed Portability Contracts 80 96 79 
Incoming Portability Contracts 68 53 19 

 



 

47 
 

 
 PACH has 230 project-based voucher (PBV) units.  The chart below provides the number of these units 

that are leased. 

 
6/1/2024 6/1/2023 6/1/2022 

220 219 223 
 
 

 Section 8 Contract Reports:  Copies of the Contract Reports are attached.  The Section 8 Contract and 
HAP Report includes HACA certificates, HACA vouchers and portability clients for which we are billing the 
initial housing authority.  The Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report includes HACA vouchers and 
portability clients for which we are billing the initial housing authority.  

 
 

 Landlord Rental Listings:  As of June 3, 2024, there were 49 active properties listed.   

 
 7/3/23 7/31/23 9/5/23 10/4/23 11/1/23 12/4/23 
Units 100 89 76 60 66 66 
       
 1/2/24 2/5/24 3/4/24 4/2/24 4/29/24 6/3/24 
Units 68 67 56 52 64 49 

 
  



 

48 
 

 
 



 

49 
 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report for the Month of May 2024 
 

City 

Number of 
HAP 

Contracts 
(HCV Only) 

Average 
Contract Rent 

Average HAP 
Paid by 
HACA 

Average Rent 
Paid by Family 

Average 
Family-Paid 

Rent as a 
Percentage of 

Average 
Contract Rent 

Albany 11 $1,804 $1,449 $355 20% 

Castro Valley 246 $2,454 $1,809 $641 26% 

Dublin 439 $2,558 $1,919 $638 25% 

Emeryville 158 $2,019 $1,486 $536 27% 

Fremont 1,232 $2,594 $1,986 $606 23% 

Hayward 1,922 $2,350 $1,740 $610 26% 

Newark 278 $2,608 $2,007 $601 23% 

Pleasanton 312 $2,296 $1,805 $491 21% 

San Leandro 1,443 $2,346 $1,733 $613 26% 

San Lorenzo 172 $2,620 $1,873 $747 28% 

Union City 686 $2,617 $1,969 $647 25% 

 
 
*Some rents may vary by $1 due to rounding 

This report includes HACA vouchers and portability clients for which we are billing the initial housing 
authority.



 

50 
 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

Meeting Date:  June 12, 2024  

Subject: Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Summary 
  
Exhibits Attached: None 
  
Recommendation: Receive Report 

 
FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY (FSS) PROGRAM NEWS 
 
 

FSS PROGRAM ACTIVITIES 

Participant Spotlight 
The FSS team would like to highlight Ms. Mayo’s achievements as a recent graduate of the FSS program. 
Ms. Mayo was working part-time as a medical biller when she joined FSS. Her 5-year plan included 
obtaining employment that provided employee benefits, something her job did not offer. Ms. Mayo 
obtained a full-time job with benefits and was promoted to a supervisor position in 2023. Her income 
more than tripled from when she started in the FSS program. Ms. Mayo also went back to school to obtain 
her high school diploma. Additionally, she set a goal to increase her credit score. Ms. Mayo raised her 
score by 229 points by working to pay off debt. She faced some difficult challenges while in the program 
but did not let that stop her from achieving her goals. The FSS team is proud to recognize her 
accomplishments. Ms. Mayo is now working hard to achieve her dream of homeownership.  
 

FSS PROGRAM SUMMARY 

Program Summary May 2024 
 

Total Clients Under Contract: 216 
Graduates: 2 
Escrow Disbursed: $24,248.09                       
Ports In: 0 
Ports Out: 0 
Terminations: 1 
New Contracts: 1 
Case Management Referrals: 11 
Job Referrals: 14  

 



 

 

ITEM NO.5-1 

ATTACHMENT A 














































































































































































